
  
TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, JUNE 5, 2012 
8:00 A.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

8:00 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   

 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
May 1, 2012, Closed Session  
May 15, 2012, Regular Meeting 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 5, 2012 AGENDA  11 

8:05 4  PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE 
PROPOSED DEMOLITION OF THE OLD HIGH SCHOOL 

 13 

9:05 5  APPALACHIAN DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT UPDATE MS. BETH LOVETTE 47 

9:10 6  JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION PROGRAM (JCPP) CERTIFICATION 
AND MEMBERSHIP FOR FY 2013 

MR. CHARLIE BYRD 51 

9:15 7  TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY’S (TDA) PROPOSED 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING REGARDING 
ENCROACHMENT ON PINE RUN ROAD 

MR. ERIC WOOLRIDGE 77 

9:20 8  RURAL OPERATING ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (ROAP) HEARING 
REQUEST - APPALCART 

MR. CHRIS TURNER 93 

9:25 9  GRANT ACCEPTANCE FOR FORKLIFT PURCHASE MS. LISA DOTY 95 

9:30 10  TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections Report 
B. Refunds and Releases 

MR. KELVIN BYRD  
119 
119 

9:35 11  FINANCE MATTERS 
A. Budget Amendments 
B. Proposed Lease Amendment on High School Property 

MS. MARGARET PIERCE  
121 
125 

9:40 12  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Meat Camp VFD Request for Support of Lease 

Purchase Agreement 
B. Fiscal Year 2013 Budget Discussion 
C. July Meeting Schedule Discussion 
D. Boards & Commissions 
E. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
131 

 
137 
139 
141 
145 

9:45 13  PUBLIC COMMENT  146 

10:45 14  BREAK  146 

10:50 15  CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 

 146 

11:00 16  ADJOURN   

 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
May 1, 2012, Closed Session  
May 15, 2012, Regular Meeting 
 
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, MAY 15, 2012 

 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
May 15, 2012, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
  PRESENT: Vince Gable, Vice-Chairman 
    David Blust, Commissioner 
    Jim Deal, Commissioner 
    Tim Futrelle, Commissioner 

Austin Eggers, County Attorney 
    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

[Clerk’s Note:  Chairman Miller was not present due to a prior commitment.] 
 

Vice-Chairman Gable called the meeting to order at 5:31 P.M. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable extended sympathy to the family of local business owner and County native, 
Mr. Mack Brown. 
 
Commissioner Deal opened the meeting with a prayer and Vice-Chairman Gable led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Vice-Chairman Gable called for additions and/or corrections to the May 1, 2012, regular meeting 
and closed session minutes and the May 3, 2012, and May 7, 2012, special meeting minutes. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the May 1, 2012, 
regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Gable, Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

 
Vice-Chairman Gable tabled consideration of the May 1, 2012, closed session minutes until a 
future meeting. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the May 3, 2012, 
special meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Gable, Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

DRAFT 

060512 BCC Meeting

2



 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the May 7, 2012, 
special meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Gable, Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Vice-Chairman Gable called for additions and/or corrections to the May 15, 2012, agenda. 
 
County Manager Geouque requested to add an additional Board of Elections’ request for 
consideration of a proposed grant to fund primary election coding. 
 
The County Manager also requested that both the scheduled closed session and the FY 2013 
Home and Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) allocation request be removed from the 
agenda.  Additional information has been received regarding the H&CCBG allocation and, 
therefore, the request would be presented at a future meeting. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the May 15, 2012, 
agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Gable, Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

WATAUGA COUNTY PATHWAYS PROPERTY TRANSFER REQUEST 
Mr. William Hall, Chairman of Watauga County Pathways, requested consideration of the 
transfer of three properties and three easements from Watauga County Pathways, Inc., previously 
Middle Fork Greenway Association, and Blue Ridge Conservancy to Watauga County.  The 
properties and easements were to be used for a planned hiking and biking greenway to be 
constructed between Boone and Blowing Rock.  The three properties were: .819 acres deeded on 
Payne Branch; 1.36 acres deeded on Niley Cook Road; and 3.658 acres on Sterling Creek 
(known as the Whitener Tract). 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that the project and transfer of the properties was originally 
approved in October of 2009, contingent upon the County Attorney preparing the appropriate 
documents; however, due to issues with the North Carolina State Property Office, recording of 
the transfers was delayed.  The proposed deeds included wording that the County would hold no 
responsibility for the construction of the greenway and its continuing maintenance after 
completion.  If approved, the properties would be listed on the County’s property insurance. 
 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

3



Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to accept the conveyance of the 
three properties as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Gable, Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

WATAUGA HUMANE SOCIETY SPAY/NEUTER PROGRAM REQUEST 
Ms. Anita Gomez, Watauga County Chief Animal Control Officer, stated that the County was 
eligible to apply to participate in a spay/neuter program funded by state revenues collected 
through I Care license plate purchases.  Cities and Counties were eligible to apply for 
reimbursement of direct costs of spaying and neutering of cats and dogs owned by low-income 
persons.  Chief Gomez presented a proposed Cooperative Spay-Neuter Services Agreement 
between the County and Humane Society as the local program would be operated through the 
Humane Society.  A correction was noted in the proposed agreement that the official name of the 
State program, which was to fund the local program, was the NC Spay/Neuter Program.  The 
purpose of the program was to reduce the population of unwanted animals in the State.  The 
Humane Society would contract with a vet to provide spay and neuter services.  Upon 
completion of the services, the Humane Society would pay the vet and submit appropriate 
documentation for the County to submit to the State for reimbursement.    No County match or 
expenditure of funds by the County was required.  Watauga Humane Society personnel were 
responsible for verifying low-income eligibility and, in the event that funds were no longer 
available, the Humane Society would be responsible for all associated expenses.  In addition, the 
Humane Society would be financially responsible for compliance with all rules and regulations 
pertaining to the program. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the Cooperative 
Spay-Neuter Services Agreement with the Watauga Humane Society as corrected to include the 
NC Spay/Neuter Program as the State program through which reimbursements were to be 
received and contingent upon the County Attorney’s review. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Gable, Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

VOTING EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
Ms. Jane Ann Hodges with the Board of Elections presented a proposed five (5) year 
maintenance agreement for the County’s voting machines which was to cover the software and 
firmware for the machines.  In past years, the State Board of Elections paid for the maintenance 
and upkeep on the voting equipment with Help America Vote Act (HAVA) funds.  However, 
$4,000,000 of HAVA funds was currently frozen and therefore not available to the County. 
 
Board of Election staff has been presented with a contract from Election Systems and Software 
to provide maintenance and repair of the voting equipment in the amount of $26,776.22 per year 

060512 BCC Meeting

4



with a five (5) year commitment or $31,268.97 per year with a one (1) year commitment.  Staff 
would recommend language be added to the contract that stated if HAVA funds were to be made 
available then the contract would be voided, unless the contract is acceptable to the County 
Attorney in its present form. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the contract with 
Election Systems and Software in the amount of $26,776.22 for a five (5) year term with the 
understanding that it would be void if HAVA funds were released by the State Board of 
Elections to pay for the maintenance and repair of the County’s voting equipment and contingent 
upon the County Attorney’s review. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Gable, Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT (HAVA) GRANT APPLICATION REQUEST 
Ms. Hodges stated that the State had recently released $1,000,000 in Help America Vote Act 
(HAVA) funds to be used for second primary election coding for which the County could apply 
in the amount of $4,500.  Ms. Hodges stated that information regarding the availability of 
funding was received May 14, 2012, and the applications for funding requests were due to the 
State by June 1, 2012. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the submission of 
the application for $4,500 in HAVA funding for second primary election coding expenses. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Gable, Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

BID AWARD REQUEST FOR DEMOLITION OF THE OLD HIGH SCHOOL 
Mr. Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director, presented the following bids received for the 
demolition of the old Watauga High School: 
 

Vendor 5% Bid Bond or 
Cashiers’ Check 

Contractor’s 
License # 

Calendar Days 
to Complete 

Primary Bid 
Price 

Alternate I 
Bid Price 

NCM 
Charlotte, NC Bid Bond 65179 180 $829,800 $115,000 

D.H. Griffin Wrecking Co., Inc. 
Hickory, NC Bid Bond 35452 120 $379,990 $54,000 

NEO Corp. 
Canton, NC Bid Bond 17865 180 $328,000 $33,750 

MBH Enterprises, Inc., 
Rural Hall, NC Bid Bond 71456 180 $475,567 $7,227 

Taylor and Murphy 
Asheville, NC  Bid Bond 5174 180 $460,475 $42,000 

E. Luke Greene Co. 
Strawberry Plains, TN Bid Bond 21121 Asbestos 45 

Demo 150 $485,000 $50,000 

060512 BCC Meeting

5



Vendor 5% Bid Bond or 
Cashiers’ Check 

Contractor’s 
License # 

Calendar Days 
to Complete 

Primary Bid 
Price 

Alternate I 
Bid Price 

EHG, LLC 
Morrisville, NC Bid Bond 55919 120 $960,000 $90,000 

Tristar of America, Inc. 
Norcross, GA Bid Bond 69663 150 $619,000 $48,000 

Empire Dismantlement Corp.  
Grand Island, NY Bid Bond 51779 180 $843,000 $30,000 

Dore and Associates 
Contracting 
Bay City, MI 

Bid Bond 17486 300 $927,600 $19,300 

Clear Site Industrial, LLC 
Charlotte, NC Bid Bond 68679 150 $634,720 $32,500 

Belfor  
Charlotte, NC  None 63672 Not Listed $1,156,986 $0 
 

A total of 12 bids were received with NEO Corporation from Canton, NC, providing the lowest 
responsive and responsible bid in the total amount of $361,750 for the demolition of the primary 
building area and acceptance of Alternate I which included the demolition of the ancillary 
buildings.  Mr. Marsh stated that the bids were valid for 60 days to allow time for a public 
hearing if the Board so wished. 
 
Commissioner Blust moved to schedule a public hearing on Tuesday, June 19, 2012, to allow 
citizen comment regarding the proposed demolition of the old high school.  Discussion was held 
regarding the need for a public hearing.  The motion died for lack of a second. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to schedule a public hearing on 
Tuesday, June 5, 2012, at 8:00 A.M. to allow citizen comment regarding the proposed 
demolition of the old high school. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Gable, Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

PUBLIC HEARINGS TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT 

A. Proposed Amendments to the Watauga County Ordinance to Govern Subdivisions and 
Multi-Unit Structures 

A public hearing was scheduled to allow citizen comment on proposed amendments to the 
Watauga County Ordinance to Govern Subdivisions and Multi-Unit Structures.   
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to open the public hearing at 
6:04 P.M. to allow citizen comment on the proposed amendments to the Watauga County 
Ordinance to Govern Subdivisions and Multi-Unit Structures. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Gable, Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

060512 BCC Meeting

6



 
Mr. Joe Furman, Planning and Inspections Director, presented the proposed changes and stated 
that the majority of the changes requested were designed to encourage affordable housing 
projects and fire apparatus access and update definitions of waste water disposal systems.  The 
Planning Board approved sending the proposed changes to the Board of Commissioners for 
adoption. 
 
There being no public comment, Vice-Chairman Gable declared the public hearing closed at 
6:07 P.M. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to adopt the amendments to the 
Watauga County Ordinance to Govern Subdivisions and Multi-Unit Structures as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5(Gable, Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

B. FY 2013 Proposed Budget 
A public hearing was scheduled to allow citizen comment on the Manager's Recommended 
Budget for Fiscal Year 2013. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to open the public hearing at 6:08 
P.M. to allow citizen comment on the Manager’s Recommended Budget for FY 2013. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Gable, Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

 
The County Manager reviewed the following changes from the FY 2013 Manager’s 
Recommended Budget due to the recent budget work sessions which resulted in an overall 
increase to the proposed budget of $10,000:  
 
Revenues   
Cable TV Franchise Fees increase $10,000 
   

Expenditures   
Board of Elections increase travel and part time salaries  $8,790 
Board of Education increase current capital outlay $18,826 
Recreation, Special Populations increase supplies and travel $850 
Special Allocations 
 

decrease Children’s Playhouse 
decrease WeCAN 

$2,500 
$1,000 

Emergency Services decrease cell allowance $576 
Tax Administration decrease salaries $6,000 
General Administration 
 

decrease Professional Services-Architects   
decrease miscellaneous expenses 

$7,540 
$850 

060512 BCC Meeting

7



 
The following individuals addressed the Board, speaking on behalf of their organization, 
regarding the recommended budget: 
 
Audrey Hartley, Watauga County Library Board Chair 
Debbie Passakaqua, Library Supporter 
Mar Stegall, Library Supporter 
Pat Alexander, Library Supporter 
Lynne Mason, Hospitality House Executive Director 
Bob Goddard, Hunger Coalition and Hospitality House 
Janice Carroll, Green Valley Community Park 
Kay Dixon, Hospitality House Vice-Chairman 
Melissa Selby, Community Care Clinic Executive Director 
Robert Schneider, Hospitality House 
Kedith England, Hospitality House Board Member 
Caroly Stewart, Hospitality House Beneficiary 
Compton Fortuna, Hunger and Health Coalition Executive Director 
Todd Carter, Hospitality House Development Director 
Parker Stevens, Appalachian Women’s Fund Executive Director 
Laura Bullock, Hospitality House Services Coordinator 
Cynthia Banks, Episcopal Church Director/Priest in Charge and Hospitality House Supporter 
Evelyn Asher, CCC&TI Small Business Center Director/Library and Hospitality House Supporter  
Steve Canipe, Southern Appalachian Historical Association Supporter 
Chris Turner, AppalCART Director 
Graham Doege, WeCAN Program Administrator/Hospitality House Supporter 
Jan Watson, Watauga Humane Society Board Chairman [Dr. Watson also requested the Board 
appoint a representative to serve on the Watauga Humane Society Board.] 
Zach Ollis was not present when called to speak 
Denise Lockett, Hospitality House Supporter 
 

There being no further public comment, Vice-Chairman Gable declared the public hearing closed 
at 7:03 P.M. 
  
Commissioner Deal made a statement that Board decisions regarding the recommended budget 
were not unanimous and shared that he believed more could be done for the Library. 
 

Board action was not required and, therefore, none was taken. 

SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, presented the Smoky Mountain Center Quarterly Report 
as required by Statute.   
 
Board action was not required and, therefore, none was taken. 

060512 BCC Meeting

8



MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Proposed Property and Liability Insurance and Workers Compensation Renewals Request 
County Manager Geouque presented renewal rates for property and liability insurance and 
workers compensation.  The rate for property and liability was quoted at $244,167, which was a 
$6,362 decrease from the current rate.  The rate for workers compensation was quoted at 
$228,278, which was an 18% increase from the current rate.  The primary cause of the increase 
was due to the rate being based on claims totals from the past three years.  This year FY 2008 
claims totaling $10,858 were dropped from that total and FY 2011 claims, totaling $226,026, 
were added.  One claim represented 70% of the total claims for FY 2011 so there was little the 
County could have done to be proactive in preventing the increase.  The County Manager stated 
that the County would realize a 2% discount for an early payment of the premium. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to accept the renewals for 
property and liability insurance, in the amount of $244,167, and workers compensation, in the 
amount of $228,278, both from the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners 
(NCACC). 

VOTE: Aye-4(Gable, Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

B. Boards and Commissions 
County Manager Geouque stated that formal action had not been taken to appoint a Board 
representative to the Watauga Humane Society Board. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to appoint Commissioner Deal 
as the Board of Commissioners’ representative member of the Watauga Humane Society Board 
of Directors. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Gable, Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

 
County Manager Geouque stated that both Mr. Paul Combs and Ms. Lauren Waterworth’s terms 
were set to expire in June on the Economic Development Commission (EDC).  EDC terms were 
for three (3) years, and appointees were eligible to serve two (2) consecutive terms.  Both Mr. 
Combs and Ms. Waterworth have served one (1) term thus far and both were willing to be 
reappointed.  The County Manager stated that a Volunteer Application had also been received 
from Ms. Susan Norris who had expressed interest in serving as a member of the EDC. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to reappoint Mr. Paul Combs 
and Ms. Lauren Waterworth to the Economic Development Commission. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Gable, Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

060512 BCC Meeting

9



C. Announcements 
County Manager Geouque made the following announcements: 
 

• A public hearing will be held Tuesday, June 5, 2012, at 8:00 A.M. to allow citizen 
comment on the proposed demolition of the old high school. 

 
• A public hearing will be held Tuesday, June 19, 2012, at 6:00 P.M. to allow citizen 

comment on proposed fire district boundary changes involving Stewart Simmons, Deep 
Gap, and Boone districts.   

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

ADJOURN 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
7:09 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Gable, Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Vince Gable, Vice-Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

10



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 5, 2012, AGENDA 

 
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

11



Blank Page 
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE PROPOSED 
DEMOLITION OF THE OLD HIGH SCHOOL 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
At the Board’s last meeting, Mr. Robert Marsh presented bids for the demolition of the old 
Watauga High School.  A total of 12 bids were received with NEO Corporation from Canton, 
NC, providing the lowest responsive and responsible bid in the amount of $361,750.  The total is 
for the demolition of the primary building area and acceptance of Alternate 1 which includes the 
demolition of the ancillary buildings.  Staff recommended a $100,000 contingency for 
unforeseen issues should the Board accept the bid.  These issues could range from underground 
oil tanks and oil spills, lead and asbestos beyond the scope identified, etc.    
 
The Board set a public hearing for June 5, 2012, at 8:00 AM to seek citizen comment regarding 
the demolition of the old high school.  The bids are valid until July 6, 2012.  
 
After the public hearing, staff seeks direction from the Board.  
     
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

13



PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 
 
 
 
 
THE WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC 

HEARING ON TUESDAY, JUNE 5, 2012, AT 8:00 A.M. TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT 

ON THE PROPOSED DEMOLITION OF THE OLD WATAUGA HIGH SCHOOL.  THE 

MEETING WILL BE HELD IN THE COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM OF THE 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING LOCATED AT 814 WEST KING 

STREET, BOONE, NORTH CAROLINA.  FOR INFORMATION OR QUESTIONS, PLEASE 

CALL (828) 265-8000. 

 
 
       NATHAN A. MILLER 
       CHAIRMAN 
 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

14



                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 
                                969 West King St.,  Boone, NC  28607  -  Phone (828) 264-1430 
                                                                                                    Fax     (828) 264-1473 
 
 
 
TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
FROM:  Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director 
 
SUBJECT: Old WHS Demolition Bids 
 
DATE:  May 7, 2012 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Old Watauga High School property was abandoned when the Board of Education 
occupied the new Watauga High School in August 2010.  Since that time the school has 
fallen into disrepair due to vandalism including the destruction of most of the glass in the 
buildings, damage to other building components and arson.    
 
The County recognizes that the property may be enhanced for future development if the 
building is demolished.  In April 2012, County Manager Geouque directed the 
Maintenance Department to receive bids for the demolition of the school.   
 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL SUMMARY 
 
A Request for Proposal was published in three regional newspapers, the Watauga 
Democrat, and the County website, WataugaCounty.org.  Fifty-one contractors replied to 
the RFP with requests for bid details.  Fifteen contractors were accompanied by staff to 
inspect the buildings in preparation for the bid.   
  
The RFP directed the bidders to submit pricing for the following; Primary Bid - removal 
of the classroom building; Alternate One - demolition of the Visitor’s and Home 
Concession Buildings, Field House, and P&R Restroom Building; Alternates Two and 
Three - removal of asbestos materials  
 
On May 7th, twelve bids were received and opened. 
    

 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

15



OLD WHS DEMOLTION PROJECT 
BID SUMMARY 

MAY 7, 2012 
 

 
 VENDOR 

 
5% BID 
BOND OR 
CASHIERS 
CHECK 

CONTRACTOR’S  
LICENSE # 

CALENDR 
DAYS TO 
COMPLETE 

PRIMARY 
BID 
PRICE 

ALTERNATE 
1 
BID PRICE 

 
 
1. 

 
NCM 
Charlotte, NC 

 
BID BOND 

 
65179 

 
180 

 
$829,800 

 
$115,000 

 
 
2. 

 
D. H. Griffin 
Wrecking Co.,  
Inc. 
Hickory, NC 

 
BID BOND 
 

 
35452 

 
120 

 
$379,990 

 
$54,000 

 
 
3. 

 
NEO Corp. 
Canton, NC 

 
BID BOND 

 
17865 

 
180 

 
$328,000 

 
$33,750 

 
 
4. 

 
MBH 
Enterprises, Inc. 
Rural Hall, NC 

 
BID BOND 

 
71456 

 
180 

 
$475,567 

 
$7,227 

 
 
5. 

 
Taylor & 
Murphy 
Asheville, NC 

 
BID BOND 

 
5174 

 
180 

 
$460,475 

 
$42,000 

 
 
6. 

 
E. Luke Greene 
Co. 
Strawberry 
Plains, TN 

 
BID BOND 

 
21121 

 
Asbestos 45 
Demo 150 

 
$485,000 

 
$50,000 

 
 
7. 

 
EHG, LLC 
Morrisville, NC 

 
BID BOND 

 
55919 

 
120 

 
$960,000 

 
$90,000 

 
 
8. 

 
Tristar of 
America, Inc. 
Norcross, GA 

 
BID BOND 

 
69663 

 
150 

 
$619,000 

 
$48,000 

 
 
9. 

 
Empire 
Dismantlement 
Corp. 
Grand Island, 
NY 

 
BID BOND 

 
51779 

 
180 

 
$843,000 

 
$30,000 

 
 
10. 

 
Dore and 
Associates 
Contracting 
Bay City, MI 

 
BID BOND 

 
17486 

 
300 

 
$927,600 

 
$19,300 

 
 
11. 

 
Clear Site 
Industrial, LLC 
Charlotte, NC 

 
BID BOND 

 
68679 

 
150 

 
$634,720 

 
$32,500 

 
 
12. 

 
Belfor 
Charlotte, NC 

 
NONE 

 
63672 

NOT 
LISTED 
 

 
$1,156,986 

 
$0 

 

060512 BCC Meeting

16



 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
NEO Corporation submitted the low bid of $328,000.  NEO has extensive experience in 
building demolition and recently completed a similar project at Winthrop University 
($653,000) which included the abatement of hazardous materials and demolition services.  
NEO Corporation looks forward to providing demolition services for Watauga County 
and anticipates mobilizing their resources to the site by June, 2012 pending a Bid Award 
and issuance of a demolition permit by the Town of Boone.  Staff recommends NEO 
Corporation based on their low bid and experience in building demolition. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT 
 
This project is an unfunded request for Fiscal Year 2011-12.  Money is available in the 
Manager’s Contingency Fund to cover the expense of this project.    
 
Attachments:   Request For Proposals 
                 Addenda 1,2,3 
  Planholder List 
  NEO Corporation Bid 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
. 

060512 BCC Meeting

17



060512 BCC Meeting

18



060512 BCC Meeting

19



060512 B
C

C
 M

eeting20



060512 BCC Meeting

21



060512 BCC Meeting

22



060512 BCC Meeting

23



060512 BCC Meeting

24



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA       AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between Watauga 

County, a North Carolina body politic, (hereinafter “the County”), and NEO 

Corporation  (hereinafter “Contractor”); 

 In consideration of the following mutual benefits to the parties, it is 

agreed: 

 Contractor shall provide demolition services necessary to complete 

the work, all as described upon the attached Request for Proposal.  The 

parties further agree as follows. 

 The work shall be performed over a continuous period not to extend 

beyond April 15, 2013.  Contractor shall assure that the work is completed in 

a workmanlike manner, and Contractor acknowledges that the County is 

relying upon Contractor’s expertise and experience in selection and 

implementation of personnel, materials and any subcontractors. 

 The work to be completed by Contactor shall be completed in 

compliance with all applicable codes, regulations, and laws including (but 

not limited to) building, fire, and other safety codes. 

 The work will be completed by Contractor to the reasonable 

satisfaction of the County’s Maintenance Director. 

 Contractor acknowledges and understands that the premises where the 

work is to be completed is public property, and open to the public and 

County personnel and operations.  To the extent the work is done during 

regular business hours or in the presence of or proximity to County 

personnel, Contractor will take all necessary measures to assure that the 

public and personnel are protected, including by providing appropriate 

warnings and by assuring that entrance ways and passages are free and clear 

of construction debris, equipment, and materials, and that the premises 

060512 BCC Meeting

25



remain in a condition where they can continue to be utilized by the public 

and County personnel. 

 Contractor shall maintain a policy of general liability insurance with 

limits not less than $1,000,000 and shall provide workers’ compensation 

coverage for all of its employees.  Contractor shall further assure that its 

subcontractors and their employees are provided with workers’ 

compensation coverage according to law.  Contractor agrees to indemnify 

and hold harmless the County, should the County be sued, or any claims be 

asserted against the County, by paying all damages, costs, and attorneys’ 

fees incurred by the County relating to such, when such claims or suits are 

the result of negligence or alleged negligence, omissions, or activities of 

contractor or its employees, providers, agents, or subcontractors. 

 Contractor shall be responsible for all clean-up and refuse disposal, 

and costs associated therewith, as is necessary to complete the work. 

 Upon completion of the work to the satisfaction of the Maintenance 

Director and proper invoicing, including by allocating the total charges 

between labor and materials, Contractor shall be paid $361,750 by the 

County for the work completed.  Prior to the County having any obligation 

to pay, in addition to completion of the work, Contractor shall provide the 

County with proof that all material providers, subcontractors, and 

independent contractors of Contractor have been paid in full by Contractor. 

 Contractor will provide a one year warranty from the date of 

completion, as to all work and materials provided pursuant hereto. 

 Should any dispute arise concerning this agreement, litigation 

concerning such shall be in the General Court of Justice for Watauga 

County, which is the situs of this contract. 

 As a condition precedent to the Agreement, and prior to 

commencement of work or the County having any obligation under this 

060512 BCC Meeting

26



Agreement, Contractor shall provide the County with a performance bond to 

assure and secure Contractor’s full performance hereunder, in a form 

acceptable to the County and its attorney. 

 This document constitutes the complete agreement between the parties 

hereto.  There are no oral terms to this agreement, and any additional terms 

to or modification of this agreement shall be in writing and signed by all 

parties, in order to have any binding effect. 

 The invalidity of any portion of this Agreement shall not affect the 

enforceability of the remaining portions hereof. 

 

 This the _______ day of _______________, ________. 

 

WATAUGA COUNTY    ________________________ 

 

By:  ________________________  ________________________ 

 

       ________________________  ________________________ 

       ________________________  ________________________ 

       ________________________  ________________________ 

 

       ________________________  ________________________ 

       Date      Date 

 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Margaret Pierce 
Watauga County Finance Director 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

27



Request For Proposals 
 

Watauga County seeks Proposals from individuals or firms interested in providing services for 
the demolition and removal of a 237,000 square foot building located in Boone, NC.  The scope 
of the project includes all demolition services to completely remove buildings, foundations, 
basements and other site improvements.  Proposals will be accepted until 2:00pm on April 26, 
2012 in the Watauga County Maintenance Office, 969 West King Street, Boone, NC 28607.  
Contact Robert Marsh, Watauga County Maintenance Director at 828-264-1430 or email 
robert.marsh@watgov.org for additional information regarding this project.  
 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 
Watauga County is seeking proposals from qualified North Carolina Licensed General 
Contractors to demolish a 237,000 square foot building located at 400 High School Drive, 
Boone, NC 28607, Watauga County PIN#2910027724000. 
 

II. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS 
 
Sealed proposals for this project shall be submitted in accordance with the SCOPE OF WORK 
outlined below, on or before 2:00 p.m. April 26, 2012.  Proposals shall include a bid bond or 
certified cashier’s check in the amount of 5% of the total bid price.  Proposals shall be 
submitted in a sealed envelope marked, “Old WHS Demolition Project.”  Proposals will be 
opened and read aloud at that time.  Proposals shall be submitted to: 
 
Watauga County Building Maintenance Department 
969 West King Street 
Boone, NC 28607 
 

III. SCOPE OF WORK 
 

1. The Contractor shall furnish all supervision, labor, materials, tools, machinery, 
equipment and services for the completion of the Project. 
 

2. The Contractor shall obtain and comply with all Federal, State and local licenses and 
permits that are required and shall pay all fees for such licenses and permits.  The 
Contractor shall abide by all Federal, State and local regulations applicable to this 
Project.  Copies of all permits shall be delivered to the County prior to the 
commencement of work. 
 

3. The Contractor shall furnish a report conducted by a North Carolina accredited asbestos 
inspector of suspect asbestos containing materials prior to demolition.  The report shall 
be submitted to the County and the Health Hazard Control Unit of the North Carolina 
Department of Health & Human Services, Division of Public Health.  The cost of this 
report shall be included in the proposal.  

060512 BCC Meeting

28



4. The Contractor shall submit unit pricing to safely remove and dispose of asbestos 
containing materials found in the Project in accordance with all Federal, State and local 
laws. 
 

5. The Contractor shall demolish and remove all structures, footings, foundations and 
walkways within the Project boundary. 

  
6. The Contractor shall remove all materials from the property and recycle or otherwise 

legally dispose of these materials in a certified landfill at the Contractor’s expense.  
Copies of disposal tickets must be submitted to the County. 
 

7. The Contractor shall stabilize the site by the installation of erosion control measures and 
shall comply with all regulations and environmental laws to ensure that no off-site 
contamination occurs.  The site shall be contoured with enough suitable fill material to 
blend smoothly in to the existing grade. All denuded area shall be seeded with straw. 
 

8.  The Contractor shall ensure High School Drive remains open to traffic and that 
equipment or trucks do not pose a hazard to the traveling public. 
 

9.  The Contractor shall disconnect and/or cap off and remove any on-site utilities.   The 
contractor shall make all necessary arrangements with utility companies for the 
disconnecting of all service and the removal of and recovery by them of all meters, 
telephones and other utility facilities or equipment owned by them.  The Contractor 
shall also arrange for and actually effect the disconnecting/capping off and closing of 
water and sewer connections to buildings, including but not limited to any work that 
must be done in addition to that normally done by the utility company, in conformity 
with all applicable codes and regulations of the local Boards of Health. 
 

10. The Contractor shall be fully and solely responsible for the safe work and complete 
safety compliance of the Contractor’s employees and agents, and the worksite, in 
accordance with all applicable Federal, State and local laws and regulations that may 
apply, including OSHA. 

 
 

IV. SALVAGE RIGHTS 
 
All materials located within the Project boundary become the property of the Contractor upon 
the bid award.  The Contractor may store and sell salvaged items during the performance of the 
Contract at his sole discretion.   
 

V. PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 
The Contractor shall state in the proposal the anticipated number of calendar days to complete 
the work.  All work shall be completed by April 15, 2013.    
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

29



VI. BONDS AND INSURANCE 
 

1. Proposals shall include a bid bond or certified bank check in the amount of 5% of the 
total bid price for the project.    
 

2. Within thirty days of the award of the contract the Contractor shall furnish a 
performance bond in the full amount of the contract. 
 

3. The Contractor shall submit proof of insurance acceptable to the Watauga County 
Finance Office. 
 

VII. AWARD OF CONTRACT 
 

1. The County reserves the right to reject any and all bids, to waive any and all 
informalities, not involving price, time or changes in the work, and to negotiate contract 
terms with the Successful Bidder, and the right to disregard all non-conforming, non-
responsive, unbalanced or conditioned bids.  Also, the County reserves the right to 
reject in whole or in part the bid of any Bidder if the County when, in the County’s sole 
opinion, believes that  it would not be in the best interest of the project or the County 
to make an award either in whole or in part to that bidder, whether because the bid is 
not responsive, the Bidder is not qualified, of doubtful financial ability, has a history of 
poor performance and/or difficulty with previous County work, or fails to meet any 
other pertinent standard or criteria established by the County. 

 
2.  In evaluating bids, the County will consider the qualifications of the Bidders, whether 

or not the bids comply with the prescribed requirements, and such alternates, unit 
prices and other data, as may be requested in the bid form or prior to the Notice of 
Award. 
 

3. The County recognizes that award of the Contract is dependent on the availability of 
funding and, therefore, the County makes no guarantees as to an award of a contract, 
to any Bidder.  If the Contract is to be awarded, it will be awarded to the lowest Bidder 
whose evaluation by the County indicates to the County that the award will be in the 
best interest of the County. 

 
VIII.  BID FORM 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

30



BID FORM 
WATAUGA HIGH SCHOOL DEMOLITION PROJECT 

 
 

NAME OF COMPANY  ____________________________________________________ 
 
                    ADDRESS ____________________________________________________ 
 
   ____________________________________________________ 
 
   ____________________________________________________ 
 
NC CONTRACTORS LICENSE NUMBER ________________________________________ 
 
 
Total Bid Price for Demolition and Removal    $_______________ 
 
Alternate One – Demolition and Removal of all Sports Facilities $ _______________ 
 
Alternate Two – Unit Pricing for Asbestos Containing Materials 
 
 9” Gray Floor Tile 28,437 sf  $_____________ 

 12” White Floor Tile 2,800 sf  $ _____________ 

 Black Mastic on Roof Drain Line $ _____________ 

 Yellow Sheet Flooring 171 sf  $ _____________ 

 
Alternate Three – Unit Price for Removal of ACM 
 

MATERIAL QUANTITY 
<250 SF 

QUANTITY 
>250 SF 

QUANTITY 
<100 LF 

QUANTITY 
>100 LF 

Floor Tile 
 

 
                            SF 

 
                       SF 

  

Mastic on Pipes 
 

   
                        LF 

 
                      LF 

Mastics on floors, 
baseboards, 
flashings  etc. 

 
 
                            SF 

 
 
                       SF 

  

Pipe Insulation 
 

   
                        LF 

 
                      LF 

Transite Building 
Components 

 
                           SF 

 
                       SF 

 
                        LF 

 
                     LF 

Roofing Materials 
 

 
                           SF 

 
                      SF 

  

Plaster 
 

 
                           SF 

 
                      SF 

  

060512 BCC Meeting

31



     IX.     ATTACHMENTS 
 

1.  Primary Bid Drawings 
a. FP2 
b. FP3 

 
2.  AHERA Report 7/7/2010 

060512 BCC Meeting

32



Addendum One 
 
 

Project:  Old Watauga High School Demolition Project 
 
Date: April 18, 2012 
 
 
I.  QUESTIONS FROM CONTRACTORS 
 
 1.  How long are the bids required to stay open?   
 
  Sixty days from date of bid submission. 
 
 2.  Is a North Carolina General Contractor’s License required? 
 
  Yes 
 
 3.  Is there asbestos in the boilers? 
 
  Smith Boiler Company was contacted and they said that asbestos was not used  
  in these boilers during production at the factory. 
 
 4.  Is an Asbestos Report required? 
 

Yes.  The Contractor that the bid is awarded to is required to provide an Asbestos 
Report/Design prior to beginning demolition.  See RFP Section III (3). 

 
 5.  Is the asbestos abatement contractor required to post a bond? 
 

No, however the General Contractor that is awarded the bid shall post a performance bond for 
all work included in the scope of the contract. 
 

 6.  Is the Contractor required to remove transformers, oils, paints, liquids, etc? 
 

The Contractor shall legally dispose of all such materials located inside the project boundary.  
The boundary for the primary bid is shown in Attachment 1. (a.) FP2 and (b.) FP3.  See RFP 
Section III (6) and (9). 
 

 7.  Is the contractor required to provide erosion control measures? 
 
  Yes.  See RFP Section III (7). 
 
 8.  Is site security fencing required? 
 

Fencing is not required by the County, however the Contractor shall not violate any Federal, 
State or Local code including OSHA.  See Section III (10). 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

33



9.  Can crushed building components such as brick or block be used for backfilling the basement or  
                   foundation voids? 
 
  No.  The Contractor shall import fill.  See RFP Section III (6) and (7). 
 
 10.  When is the approximate date for the Bid Award? 
 
  July 2, 2012 
 
 11.  When can work commence? 
 
  Upon notification of Bid Award by the County. 
 
 12.  Is there a limit on the number of days to complete the project? 
 
  Yes, the project must be completed by April 15, 2013.  See RFP Section V. 
 
 13.  Does the County have need for the gravel that is crushed on-site?   
 
  No.  The Contractor may store materials on-site until the April 15, 2013 completion date. 
 
 14.  Can the concrete be crushed on-site? 
 
  Yes. 
 
 15.  Is water available at the site? 
 

Yes, however the Contractor is responsible for coordination with the Town of Boone and the      
expense for the water service and usage charges. 
 

16.  Are the ball fields, sports lighting, tennis courts, parking lots, mobile office trailer behind the         
        school part of the scope of work? 

 
  No. 
 
 17.  Is the Contractor responsible for removing the concrete under the bleachers or the bleachers? 
 

No.  Alternate One includes the buildings at the sports facilities:  Visitors Concession, Home 
Concession, Field House and Public Restroom Building at the Tennis Courts. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

II.  REVISED BID FORM 
 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

34



REVISED 4/18/12 
BID FORM 

WATAUGA HIGH SCHOOL DEMOLITION PROJECT 
 
 

NAME OF COMPANY  ____________________________________________________ 
 
                    ADDRESS ____________________________________________________ 
 
   ____________________________________________________ 
 
   ____________________________________________________ 
 
NC CONTRACTORS LICENSE NUMBER ________________________________________ 
 
CALENDAR DAYS TO COMPLETE PROJECT _____________________________________ 
 
 
Total Bid Price for Demolition and Removal    $_______________ 
 
Alternate One – Demolition and Removal of all Sports Facilities $ _______________ 
 
Alternate Two – Unit Pricing for Asbestos Containing Materials 
 
 Floor Tile and Mastic 34,672 sf $_____________ 

 Black Mastic on Roof Drain Line $ _____________ 

 Yellow Sheet Flooring 171 sf  $ _____________ 

 
Alternate Three – Unit Price for Removal of ACM 
 

MATERIAL QUANTITY 
<250 SF 

QUANTITY 
>250 SF 

QUANTITY 
<100 LF 

QUANTITY 
>100 LF 

Floor Tile and 
Mastic 

 
                            SF 

 
                       SF 

  

Mastic on Pipes 
 

   
                        LF 

 
                      LF 

Mastics on floors, 
baseboards, 
flashings  etc. 

 
 
                            SF 

 
 
                       SF 

  

Pipe Insulation 
 

   
                        LF 

 
                      LF 

Transite Building 
Components 

 
                           SF 

 
                       SF 

 
                        LF 

 
                     LF 

Roofing Materials 
 

 
                           SF 

 
                      SF 

  

Plaster 
 

 
                           SF 

 
                      SF 

  

 

060512 BCC Meeting

35



 
 
*This Bid shall remain viable and subject to Bid Award by the Watauga County Board of County 
Commissioners for sixty days upon submission. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________  ________________________ 
                      Contractor (Print or Type)          Date 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
                                 Signature 
 
 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this __________________ day of _____________________ 
 
Notary Public:  _____________________________________ 
 
My Commission Expires:  _____________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

36



 
IX.  ATTACHMENTS 
 
 1. Primary Bid Drawings 
  a.  FP2 
  b.  FP3 
 
 2.  AHERA Report 7/7/10 
 
 3.  Asbestos Floor Tile and Mastic Drawing (2) pages 
 
 4.  Asbestos Testing Results 4/12/12 (6) pages 
  
 5.  Planholder List Revised 4/17/12 (3) pages 
 

 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

37



ADDENDUM TWO 

 

PROJECT:  Old Watauga High School Demolition 

DATE:  April 25, 2012 

 

Please be advised the Bid Date for this project has been changed.  Proposals will be accepted until 2:00 

p.m.  on May 7, 2012 in the Watauga County Maintenance Office, 969 West King Street, Boone, NC 

28607.    

Watauga County will issue Addendum Three to address the handling and disposal of building 

components suspected of containing lead based paint.    

060512 BCC Meeting

38



  
ADDENDUM THREE 

 
 
PROJECT:  Old Watauga County High School 
 
DATE:         May 1, 2012 
 

I. Lead Paint Containing Materials 

The County conducted lead paint testing on April 30, 2012.  Approximately 600 locations were 
tested including walls, floors and baseboard surfaces on the interior and exterior of the Old 
Watauga High School Building.  No lead was detected in the painted surfaces with the following 
exceptions: 
 

1. Ceramic Wall Tile (11,786 SF) – This product is located in the locker rooms, kitchen and 
bathrooms within the 1964 section of the building.   
 

2. Rubber/Vinyl Base (850 LF) – Located mostly in the 1964 section of the building 

THE BIDDER SHALL INCLUDE THE COST FOR REMOVAL OF LEAD CONTANING MATERIALS IN 
THE PRIMARY BID PRICE.   
 

II. Revised Bid Form (attached)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

39



 
 

REVISED 5/1/12 
BID FORM 

WATAUGA HIGH SCHOOL DEMOLITION PROJECT 
 
 

NAME OF COMPANY  ____________________________________________________ 
 
 
                    ADDRESS ____________________________________________________ 
 
 
   ____________________________________________________ 
 
 
   ____________________________________________________ 
 
 
NC CONTRACTORS LICENSE NUMBER ________________________________________ 
 
 
CALENDAR DAYS TO COMPLETE PROJECT _____________________________________ 
 
 
Total Primary Bid Price for Demolition and Removal   $_______________ 
 
Alternate One – Demolition and Removal of all Sports Facilities $ _______________ 
 
Alternate Two – Unit Pricing for Asbestos Containing Materials 
 
THE COST FOR REMOVAL OF THESE ITEMS SHALL BE INCLUDED IN THE TOTAL PRIMARY BID 
PRICE FOR DEMOLITION AND REMOVAL LISTED ABOVE. 
 
 Floor Tile and Mastic 34,672 sf $_____________ 

 Black Mastic on Roof Drain Line $ _____________ 

 Yellow Sheet Flooring 171 sf  $ _____________ 

 
 
 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

40



Alternate Three – Unit Price for Removal of ACM 
 
 

MATERIAL QUANTITY 
<250 SF 

QUANTITY 
>250 SF 

QUANTITY 
<100 LF 

QUANTITY 
>100 LF 

Floor Tile and 
Mastic 

 
                            SF 

 
                       SF 

  

Mastic on Pipes 
 

   
                        LF 

 
                      LF 

Mastics on floors, 
baseboards, 
flashings  etc. 

 
 
                            SF 

 
 
                       SF 

  

Pipe Insulation 
 

   
                        LF 

 
                      LF 

Transite Building 
Components 

 
                           SF 

 
                       SF 

 
                        LF 

 
                     LF 

Roofing Materials 
 

 
                           SF 

 
                      SF 

  

Plaster 
 

 
                           SF 

 
                      SF 

  

Rubber or Vinyl 
Baseboard and  
Mastic 

   
 
                        LF 

 
 
                     LF 

 
 
*This Bid shall remain viable and subject to Bid Award by the Watauga County Board of County 
Commissioners for sixty days upon submission. 
 
 
_____________________________________________  ________________________ 
                      Contractor (Print or Type)          Date 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
                                 Signature 
 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this __________________ day of 
_____________________ 
 
Notary Public:  _____________________________________ 
 
My Commission Expires:  _____________________________ 

060512 BCC Meeting

41



WHS DEMOLITION PLANHOLDER LIST 

 

NAME / LOCATION CONTACT EMAIL DATE OF SITE 
VISIT 

PLAN 
SERVICE Y/N 

PHONE # 

Clear Site Industrial 
Charlotte, NC 

Brandon 
Shoaf 

bshoaf@clearsiteindustrial.com 4/11 Wed 
Shop 

N 704-210-2138 

Target Construction 
Charleston, SC 

Mike Aiken Maiken3000@gmail.com  N  

Jimmy Lynch and Sons  
Pilot Mtn., NC 

Cathy Snow csnow@jrlynchandsons.com 4/19 Thu 
10:00 WHS 

N 336-368-4047 

Builders Exchange 
Knoxville, TN 

Tiffany   Y 865-525-0443 

Construction Data Tess   Y 512-634-5979 
Environmental Holding Group 
Charlotte, NC 

Stephanie 
Kegley 

skegley@ehgllc.com 4/20 11:00 
WHS 

N  70 4- 363-
5434 

Omega Demolition 
Elgin, IL  

Jennifer estimating@omega-demolition.com Will not bid N 630-837-3000 
 

QAS 
Greensboro, NC 

Justin Cox jcox@qasservices.com 4/12 Thu 
2:00 WHS 

N 800-823-2774  
Ext 501 

Complete Demolition Service 
Carrollton, GA 

Ella Kraus james@cds@att.net  N 770-830-9996 
 

Empire Dismantlement 
Grand Isle, NY 

Denise empiredc@sysr.com  N 716-773-7707 

ISQ Nicole Pierson nhughes@isqft.com  Y  
Demtek 
Spartanburg, SC 

Brandon 
Stepp 

info@demtekllc.com  N 864-580-2099 

NEO Corporation 
Canton, NC 

Greg Pressley gpressley@neocorporation.com 4/10 Wed 
10:00 Shop 

N 800-822-1247 

Causey Demolition 
Asheboro, NC 

Brandon 
Causey 

Bcausey711@yahoo.com  N 336-736-0742 

GME Demolition LLC 
Charlotte, NC 

Greg McCoy gmedemolitionllc@bellsouth.net 4/16 10:30 
WHS 

N 704-496-1540 

JW Hampton 
Boone, NC 

C. Hampton-
Smith 

jwhampton@bellsouth.net 4/16 2:30 
WHS 

N 828-264-7103 

060512 B
C

C
 M

eeting42



WHS DEMOLITION PLANHOLDER LIST 

Chaplin and Sons Clearing and 
Demolition, Augusta GA  

Robert 
Chaplin 

chaplinandsons@aol.com  N 706-945-0838 
 

National Salvage & Service Corp. 
INDIANA 

Joshua 
Haltom 

Josh.haltom@nssccorp.com  N  

D.H. Griffin Wrecking Co. Inc 
NC/TN 

Chris Scissom 
F. Perkins 

cscissom@dhgriffin.com  4/23 Mon 
10:30 WHS 

N 276-669-7333 

Sabre Demolition 
New York State 

Thomas 
O’Brien 

tobrien@sabredemolition.com  N 315-320-4233 

High Point Builders LLC 
High Point, NC 

Greg Mauldin Greghpb1165@aol.com  N 336-688-5472 

NCM 
Charlotte, NC 

Joesph 
Stritmatter 

js@ncmgroup.com 4/17 Tue 
10:00 WHS 

N 704320-0766 

      
Boone Const 
Foscoe, NC 

Ron Funk   N 963-8607 

Dallas Lawrence Const. 
Boone, NC 

D. Lawrence dlconst@skybest.com 4/12 Thur 
9:00 WHS 

N 828-963-7200 

Southern Environmental Services, 
Inc. 
 

Tom Wasson tom.wasson@sesi.net  N 770-933-0005 

DD Trucking & Grading, Inc 
Winston Salem, NC 

Chip Johnson chipjohnson@triad.twbc.com 4/16 Mon 
1:00 WHS 

N 336-922-4126 

Darren Moretz  
Boone, NC 

Darren 
Moretz 

dlmoretz@bellsouth.net  N 828-964-1006 

Blackwater Enterprises Inc 
Rocky Mt., NC  

L. Gray Price grayprice@ymail.com  N 252-217-4871 

Reed Const Data 
Norcross, GA 

Shauna 
Morgan 

Shauna.morgan@reedbusiness.com  Y 800-294--0504 

Eggers Const. 
Banner Elk, NC 

Bill Cook bcook@skybest.com 4/11Wed 
3:30 WHS 

N 828-898-5862 

AGC 
Charlotte, NC 

Brady Buckley bbuckley@carolinasagc.org  Y  

E. Luke Greene Company 
Johnson City, TN 

Dawn Melton dawn@elukegreene.com 4/18 10:00 
WHS 

N 423-926-1151 

060512 B
C

C
 M

eeting43



WHS DEMOLITION PLANHOLDER LIST 

J. R. Vannoy Const. 
Jefferson, NC 

Jennifer 
Nichols 

Jennifer.nichols@jrvannoy.com  N 336-846-4287 
 

Carolinas Environmental LLC 
 

Paul Oxendine poxendine@carolinasenvironmental.com  N 336-309-2305 

Applied Abatement Concepts 
Kings Mtn., NC  

Kathy Culver 
Don Haynes 

aa@demo@yahoo.com  N 704-730-0701 

Roy Consulting Group Corp 
Charlotte, NC 

James Roy jroy@royconsultinggroup.com  N 704-698-4111 
 

Taylor and Murphy 
Asheville, NC 

Jeff Bradley jbradley@taylorandmurphy.com 4/23 11:00 
WHS 
 

N 828-667-4526 
ext. 307 

EME Industrial Services, LLC 
Greensboro, NC 

Susan Moore smoore@emeindustrial.com  N 336-664-0003 

Tristar of America 
Atlanta, GA 

Joe Barillari joe@tristaramerica.net  N 770-368-8700  

Cambro 
Morganton, NC 

Jeffrey Moon jeffreydmoon@gmail.com  N 919-323-5548 
 

Tristar Evironmental 
Norcross, GA  

Joe Barillari joe@tristaramerica.net  N 770-368-8080 
 

Critical Power Exchange 
Spokane, WA 

Nick Peterson nicholasp@criticalpower.com  N 800-325-9207 
 

East Coast Demolition and 
Recycling, Hartsville, SC 

Scott Cornell jsccorn@aol.com  N 704-589-0551 

SB Cox, Inc 
Richmond, VA 

Chase Loomer c.loomer@sbcoxdemolition.com  N 804-980-0902 

MBI Builders 
Wilkesboro, NC 

Garrett garrett@MBIbuilders.com Will not bid N  

MBH Enterprises Mitchell 
Howard 

mbhenterprises@hotmail.com 5/2 10:00 
WHS 

N 336-408-0908 

Terry – Lynn LLC Amy Miller amy@terry-lynnllc.com 5/3 11:00 
WHS 

N 704-500-8686 

Fleetwood Daniels Group LLC Clay Hinson Cdhinson777@hotmail.com 5/2  11:00 
WHS 

N 919-210-6420 

Angel Export/Import David Dholaria abcdamerica@gmail.com  N 281-761-7813 

060512 B
C

C
 M

eeting44



WHS DEMOLITION PLANHOLDER LIST 

Dore and Associates     
Bay City, MI     
Belfour Danny Lyons www.belfour.com  N 800-856-3333 
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
 

060512 B
C

C
 M

eeting45



Blank Page 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

46



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

APPALACHIAN DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT UPDATE 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Per Commissioner request, Ms. Beth Lovette, Appalachian Health District, will present an 
update on health department matters.   
 
Later in the meeting, staff will request any additional changes to the proposed Fiscal Year 2012-
2013 Budget that is scheduled for adoption on June 19, 2012.  This would be the appropriate 
time to address any increases in funding for the Health Department.   
 
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

47



060512 BCC Meeting

48



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
BUSINESS OFFICE  ALLEGHANY CO. HEALTH DEPT. ASHE CO. HEALTH DEPT. WATAUGA CO. HEALTH 
 DEPT. PO   Box 309  157 Health Services Road  PO   Box 208  126 Poplar Grove Connector  
Sparta, NC  28675  Sparta, NC  28675   Jefferson, NC  28640  Boone, NC  28607 
336-372-8813  336-372-5641   336-246-9449  828-264-6635    
336-372-7793 Fax                        336-372-7793 Fax                                           336-246-8163 Fax                        828-264-4997 Fax   

 
      

 
 
 
 
MEMO Updated May 23, 2012 
 
Deron Geouque, County Manager 
814 West King Street 
 Boone,  NC 28607 
 
Dear Deron, 
 
Attached please find a copy of the Appalachian District Health Department (ADHD) Board of Health 2012‐13 budget 
proposal that was approved by the Board of Health as an interim budget as we wait for final state and county funding 
numbers.  A few highlights of our budget include: 

1. There is a request for increase in county appropriation of 5%.  Please see the attached Local Appropriation 
Summary to better understand Watauga County’s position in the District budget.  This additional funding will be 
used to continue to improve the Environmental Health Water Protection Programs.  (See attached summary for 
improvement plan.) 

2. The Finance Committee asked that I highlight the public health services that are mandated in each local health 
department.  They are marked with an asterisk on the budget. 

3. This budget (even with the 5% increase included) includes $461,235 fund balance budgeted.  The Board of 
Health recognizes that a continued trend of decreasing fund balance cannot continue.  However we have good 
news; since the approval of this interim budget, several grants have been finalized and the Medicaid Cost 
Settlement has been received.  These numbers improve the anticipated year‐end impact on the ADHD fund 
balance to be under $200,000.  The Board of Health will finalize the 2012‐13 budget to reflect the most up‐to‐
date information possible at the June 19 meeting.  This budget will be forwarded to each County Manager. 

4. With local appropriations credited to the state‐mandated line items, it is evident that the source of budget 
deficit is the Primary Care Program.  Primary Care provides health care (including physicals and sick care) for 
under‐served adults.  In Watauga County, 1450 different adults were served in the last fiscal year.  84% are 
uninsured.  The Appalachian District Health Department is working closely with Appalachian Regional Healthcare 
System’s Community Outreach Department and with the Community Care Clinic to address this concern, but 
with one in four adults uninsured in Watauga County, access to care for these individuals remains a large 
community concern.  At this point, without additional funding available for adult primary care services, the 
program cannot be maintained over time.  The Finance Committee of the Board of Health will continue to 
monitor the program and will make necessary changes within the first six months of the next fiscal year.   

5. The Environmental Health program (Food and Lodging Inspections and Septic/Well Permitting) is mandated and, 
therefore, fees generated by the program are supplemented by the majority of your local appropriation.  There 
are no budgeted changes in Watauga staffing at this time.  As you know, I continue to address customer service, 
efficiencies and work flow in these programs.   

Thank you for your continued support of the important public health initiatives in Watauga County.  If you have any 
questions or need additional clarification, please don’t hesitate to call.  My cell number is 336‐877‐6103. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Beth Lovette, RN, MPH 
Health Director 

APPALACHIAN DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
DISTRICT OFFICE: 126 Poplar Grove Connector, Boone, NC 28607 

Telephone 828-264-4995    Fax 828-264-4997 
www.apphealth.com  

 
Health for All: Promote. Prevent. Empower. 

 

 
060512 BCC Meeting

49



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
BUSINESS OFFICE  ALLEGHANY CO. HEALTH DEPT. ASHE CO. HEALTH DEPT. WATAUGA CO. HEALTH DEPT. 
PO   Box 309  157 Health Services Road  PO   Box 208  126 Poplar Grove Connector  
Sparta, NC  28675  Sparta, NC  28675   Jefferson, NC  28640  Boone, NC  28607 
336-372-8813  336-372-5641   336-246-9449  828-264-6635    
336-372-7793 Fax                        336-372-7793 Fax                                           336-246-8163 Fax                        828-264-4997 Fax   

 
      

 
 
 
 
 

Environmental Health Services 
Water Protection Programs 

Watauga County 
May 14, 2012 

 
Appalachian District Health Department  continues  to work  to  improve  customer  service,  community 
perception and quality  improvement with Environmental Health Services.   Following  is a  summary of 
improvement activities: 
 

 Additional training and support for staff which will include communication skills 
1. Customer Service in a Regulatory Environment – scheduled with Northwest AHEC. 
2. Consistency in communication between different Environmental Health Specialists and 

the general public 
3. Public Interaction Training – already in progress 
4. Staying positive during challenging times – already in progress 

 Improve the Quality Assurance program to prevent future issues of inconsistencies between EH 
Specialists and EH rules – already in progress 

 Continued real‐time tracking including monitoring and accountability for outliers with quarterly 
summaries to stakeholders 

 Overall communication plan 
1. Verbal contact to applicants within five days of receipt of application 
2. Concurrent tracking for applications so that we can see where an application is in the 

process, even when the EHS working on the application is not in the office 
3. Customer service surveys – beginning July 1 for all services, District‐wide 

 Local advisory committees for permitting in Ashe and Watauga Counties facilitated by Region D 
Council on Governments – first meeting with facilitator May 25 

 Productivity tracking and feedback to staff and stakeholders to identify increasing permit 
numbers and work with County Commissioners to increase staffing as needed 

 Evaluate, establish a plan and budget for improved technology (which will require assistance 
from our counties).   
 

I encourage individuals to contact me if they have issues of concern or ideas for improvement 
(beth.lovette@apphealth.com or 828‐264‐4995).  I feel certain that individual communication will help 
to continue to inform me of the issues of the community and will allow for some closure of issues that 
are in the past and we are unable to change.  Additionally, North Carolina will have a new Environmental 
Health Director, Layton Long, who begins work in Raleigh on June 6.  As a former local health director 
and local environmental health director, I am confident that he will also offer assistance with consistent 
interpretation of the well rules and how they relate to older wells. 
 
Thanks again for your continued interest, concern and support.   
                  Beth Lovette, Health Director 

APPALACHIAN DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
DISTRICT OFFICE: 126 Poplar Grove Connector, Boone, NC 28607 

Telephone 828-264-4995    Fax 828-264-4997 
www.apphealth.com  

 
Health for All: Promote. Prevent. Empower. 

 

060512 BCC Meeting

50



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION PROGRAM (JCPP) CERTIFICATION AND 
MEMBERSHIP FOR FY 2013 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Mr. Charlie Byrd will present the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) certification and 
membership roster for FY 2013.   
 
Board approval is requested for the certification and membership. 
 
 
 
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

51



                  W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 
   814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607  - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
 
M E M O R A N D U M     
 
 
 
 TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
 FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
 
 SUBJECT: JCPC Certification and Membership for 2012-13  
 
 DATE: May 24, 2012 
 
 

Attached please find the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 2012-13 Certification and 
Membership Recommendations. Charlie Byrd should be available to answer any questions. 
 
Board approval is requested. 
 

  

060512 BCC Meeting

52



060512 BCC Meeting

53



060512 BCC Meeting

54



060512 BCC Meeting

55



060512 BCC Meeting

56



060512 BCC Meeting

57



060512 BCC Meeting

58



060512 BCC Meeting

59



060512 BCC Meeting

60



060512 BCC Meeting

61



060512 BCC Meeting

62



060512 BCC Meeting

63



060512 BCC Meeting

64



060512 BCC Meeting

65



060512 BCC Meeting

66



060512 BCC Meeting

67



060512 BCC Meeting

68



060512 BCC Meeting

69



060512 B
C

C
 M

eeting70



060512 B
C

C
 M

eeting71



060512 B
C

C
 M

eeting72



060512 BCC Meeting

73



060512 B
C

C
 M

eeting74



060512 B
C

C
 M

eeting75



Blank Page 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

76



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY’S (TDA) PROPOSED MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING REGARDING ENCROACHMENT ON PINE RUN ROAD 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Mr. Eric Woolridge, Watauga TDA, will present an update on the proposed Memorandum of 
Understanding regarding the encroachment on Pine Run Road.  The TDA Board will be 
reviewing this request at their June 12, 2012, meeting.  If adopted by the TDA Board, Mr. 
Woolridge will request Board approval at the June 19, 2012 meeting.  
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
 
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

77



MEMO 
 
To: Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
From: Eric Woolridge, WCTDA Tourism Planner 
  
Date:  May 23, 2012 
 
Re:   Pine Run Paddle Access/ NCDOT Encroachment Agreement  
 
 
In January 2012 the Watauga County Board of Commissioners and the Watauga County Tourism 
Development Authority Board of Directors authorized TDA staff to apply for a NC Recreation 
Trails Program grant to improve river access along the South Fork New River at Pine Run Road 
and Green Valley Park. 
 
The WCTDA has received notification that we have been recommended for funding in the 
amount of $75,000, provided we have secured an encroachment agreement from NCDOT for the 
Pine Run Access by August 1st. 
 
NCDOT has provided the encroachment agreement documents, which have been reviewed and 
approved by the county attorney. All environmental permits for Pine Run construction have been 
secured and are also pending the encroachment agreement. 
 
The WCTDA Board of Directors will make a final determination at their June 12th meeting as to 
whether to approve the $18,750 required as matching funds for this grant. However, due to the 
approaching deadline, I wanted to have this information to the Board of Commissioners as soon 
as possible. 
 
 
Recommended Action 
I request no action at this time. Due to the mandatory August 1st deadline, I wanted to provide 
this information to you at the earliest possible time. Provided the TDA accepts the grant award 
and authorizes matching grant funds at their June 12th meeting, I will make a formal request for 
approval at the Commissioner’s June 19th meeting. The future request: 
  

Authorize Watauga County to enter into an encroachment agreement with NCDOT to 
construct the Pine Run River Access, provided the WCTDA commits to all costs 
associated with the construction and future maintenance of the facility. 

 
Attachments 

1. Encroachment Documents 
2. Engineered Plan 
3. Grant Award Letter 

 

060512 BCC Meeting

78



VERIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH
ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

(Check Appropriate Box)

Permits from the N.C. Department of Environment and Natural Resources and the 
U.S. Army Corp of Engineers are not required for this project.  However, all applicable
federal and state regulations have been followed.

The required permits from the N.C. Department of Environment and Natural Resources
and the U.S. Army Corp of Engineers have been obtained for this project.  Copies of
permits and Completion Certificates are attached.

All applicable NPDES Stormwater Permit requirements have been met for this project.
(The applicant should contact the N.C. Division of Water Quality in Raleigh to determine
if a stormwater permit is required.)

The project is in compliance with all applicable sedimentation and erosion control laws
and regulations.

Project Name: __________________________

Township: __________________________    County:     _____________________

Project Engineer: __________________________    Phone No.:  _____________________

Project Contact: __________________________

    Applicant’s Name: _____________________________                         P.E. SEAL

    Date Submitted: _____________________________

Form VCER-1
June 1, 2006

060512 BCC Meeting

79



060512 BCC Meeting

80



060512 BCC Meeting

81



060512 BCC Meeting

82



060512 BCC Meeting

83



060512 BCC Meeting

84



FORM R/W 16.1A  (January, 1981) 

     STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
ROUTE  PROJECT  COUNTY OF  
 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 

-AND- 

 RIGHT OF WAY ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT 
FOR NON-UTILITY ENCROACHMENTS ON 
PRIMARY AND SECONDARY HIGHWAYS 

   
   

 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this the     day of    , 20     , by and between the Department 
of Transportation, party of the first part; and   
      party of the second part, 

W I T N E S S E T H 

 THAT WHEREAS, the party of the second part desires to encroach on the right of way of the public road designated as 

Route(s)  , located  
      
with the construction and/or erection 
of: 

 

 

 WHEREAS, it is to the material advantage of the party of the second part to effect this encroachment, and the 
party of the first part in the exercise of authority conferred upon it by statute, is willing to permit the encroachment 
within the limits of the right of way as indicated, subject to the conditions of this agreement; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED that the party of the first part hereby grants to the party of the second 
part the right and privilege to make this encroachment as shown on attached plan sheet(s), specifications and 
special provisions which are made a part hereof upon the following conditions, to wit: 

 That the said party of the second part binds and obligates himself to install and maintain the encroaching facility in such safe 
and proper condition that it will not interfere with or endanger travel upon said highway, nor obstruct nor interfere with the proper 
maintenance thereof, to reimburse the party of the first part for the cost incurred for any repairs or maintenance to its roadways 
and structures necessary due to the installation and existence of the facilities of the party of the second part, and if at any time the 
party of the first part shall require the removal of or changes in the location of the said facilities, that the said party of the second 
part binds himself, his successors and assigns, to promptly remove or alter the said facilities, in order to conform to the said 
requirement, without any cost to the party of the first part.  
 
 That the party of the second part agrees to provide during construction and any subsequent maintenance proper signs, signal 
lights, flagmen and other warning devices for the protection of traffic in conformance with the latest Manual on Uniform Traffic 
Control Devices for Streets and Highways and Amendments or Supplements thereto.  Information as to the above rules and 
regulations may be obtained from the Division Engineer of the party of the first part. 
 
 That the party of the second part hereby agrees to indemnify and save harmless the party of the first part from all damages 
and claims for damage that may arise by reason of the installation and maintenance of this encroachment. 
 
 It is clearly understood by the party of the second part that the party of the first part will assume no responsibility for any 
damage that may be caused to such facilities, within the highway rights of way limits, in carrying out its construction and 
maintenance operations. 
 
 That the party of the second part agrees to restore all areas disturbed during installation and maintenance to the satisfaction of 
the Division Engineer of the party of the first part.  The party of the second part agrees to exercise every reasonable precaution 
during construction and maintenance to prevent eroding of soil; silting or pollution of rivers, streams, lakes, reservoirs, other water 
impoundments, ground surfaces or other property; or pollution of the air.  There shall be compliance with applicable rules and 
regulations of the North Carolina Division of Environmental Management, North Carolina Sedimentation Control Commission, and 
with ordinances and regulations of various counties, municipalities and other official agencies relating to pollution prevention and 
control.  When any installation or maintenance operation disturbs the ground surface and existing ground cover, the party of the 
second part agrees to remove and replace the sod or otherwise reestablish the grass cover to meet the satisfaction of the Division 
Engineer of the party of the first part. 
 
 That the party of the second part agrees to assume the actual cost of any inspection of the work considered to be necessary 
by the Division Engineer of the party of the first part. 
 
 That the party of the second part agrees to have available at the encroaching site, at all times during construction, a copy of 
this agreement showing evidence of approval by the party of the first part.  The party of the first part reserves the right to stop all 
work unless evidence of approval can be shown. 
 
 Provided the work contained in this agreement is being performed on a completed highway open to traffic; the party of the 
second part agrees to give written notice to the Division Engineer of the party of the first part when all work contained herein has 
been completed.  Unless specifically requested by the party of the first part, written notice of completion of work on highway 
projects under construction will not be required. 
 
 That in the case of noncompliance with the terms of this agreement by the party of the second part, the party of the first part 
reserves the right to stop all work until the facility has been brought into compliance or removed from the right of way at no cost to 
the party of the first part. 
 
 That it is agreed by both parties that this agreement shall become void if actual construction of the work contemplated herein is 
not begun within one (1) year from the date of authorization by the party of the first part unless written waiver is secured by the 
party of the second part from the party of the first part.

060512 BCC Meeting

85



R/W (161A) : Party of the Second Part certifies that this agreement is true and accurate copy of the form 
R/W (161A) incorporating all revisions to date. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties to this agreement has caused the same to be executed the day and 
year first above written. 
 
  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

  BY:       
   District Engineer 

ATTEST OR WITNESS:   

             

   

   
  Second Party 
 
 

INSTRUCTIONS 
 

When the applicant is a corporation or a municipality, this agreement must have the corporate seal and 
be attested by the corporation secretary or by the empowered city official, unless a waiver of corporate 
seal and attestation by the secretary or by the empowered City official is on file in the Raleigh office of 
the Manager of Right of Way.  In the space provided in this agreement for execution, the name of the 
corporation or municipality shall be typed above the name, and title of all persons signing the agreement 
should be typed directly below their signature. 
 
When the applicant is not a corporation, then his signature must be witnessed by one person.  The 
address should be included in this agreement and the names of all persons signing the agreement 
should be typed directly below their signature. 
 
This agreement must be accompanied, in the form of an attachment, by plans or drawings showing the 
following applicable information: 
 
1. All roadways and ramps. 
2. Right of way lines and where applicable, the control of access lines. 
3. Location of the proposed encroachment. 
4. Length and type of encroachment. 
5. Location by highway survey station number.  If station number cannot be obtained, location 

should be shown by distance from some identifiable point, such as a bridge, road, 
intersection, etc.  (To assist in preparation of the encroachment plan, the Department’s 
roadway plans may be seen at the various Highway Division Offices, or at the Raleigh 
office.) 

6. Drainage structures or bridges if affected by encroachment. 
7. Typical section indicating the pavement design and width, and the slopes, widths and 

details for either a curb and gutter or a shoulder and ditch section, whichever is applicable. 
8. Horizontal alignment indicating general curve data, where applicable. 
9. Vertical alignment indicated by percent grade, P.I. station and vertical curve length, where 

applicable. 
10. Amount of material to be removed and/or placed on NCDOT right of way, if applicable. 
11. Cross-sections of all grading operations, indicating slope ratio and reference by station 

where applicable. 
12. All pertinent drainage structures proposed.  Include all hydraulic data, pipe sizes, structure 

details and other related information. 
13. Erosion and sediment control. 
14. Any special provisions or specifications as to the performance of the work or the method of 

construction that may be required by the Department must be shown on a separate sheet 
attached to encroachment agreement provided that such information cannot be shown on 
plans or drawings. 

15. The Department’s Division Engineer should be given notice by the applicant prior to actual 
starting of installation included in this agreement. 

16. Method of handling traffic during construction where applicable. 
17. Scale of plans, north arrow, etc. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

86



FORM R/W 16.1B  (May, 1982) 
Page 1 

     STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
ROUTE       PROJECT       COUNTY OF       

 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 

-AND- 

 RIGHT OF WAY ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT FOR 
CURB AND GUTTER, PAVEMENT WIDENING AND 
STORM DRAINAGE 

        
        

 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this the     day of    , 20    , by and between the Department 
of Transportation, party of the first part; and        
 party of the second part, 

W I T N E S S E T H 

 THAT WHEREAS, the party of the second part desires to encroach on the right of way of the public road designated as 
Route(s)       , located       
      
with the construction and/or erection 
of: 

      

      
      

 WHEREAS, it is to the material advantage of the party of the second part to effect this encroachment, and the party of 
the first part in the exercise of authority conferred upon it by statute, is willing to permit the encroachment within the limits of the 
right of way as indicated, subject to the conditions of this agreement; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED that the party of the first part hereby grants to the party of the second part the right 
and privilege to make this encroachment as shown on attached plan sheet(s), specifications and special provisions which are 
made a part hereof upon the following conditions, to wit: 

 That the said party of the second part binds and obligates himself to install the encroaching facility in such safe 
and proper condition that it will not interfere with or endanger travel upon said highway.  
 
 That the party of the second part agrees to provide during construction proper signs, signal lights, flagmen and 
other warning devices for the protection of traffic in conformance with the latest Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices for Streets and Highways and Amendments or Supplements thereto.  Information as to the above rules and 
regulations may be obtained from the Division Engineer of the party of the first part. 
 
 That the party of the second part hereby agrees to indemnify and save harmless the party of the first part from all 
damages and claims for damage that may arise by reason of the installation and maintenance of this encroachment. 
 
 It is clearly understood by the party of the second part that the party of the first part will assume no responsibility 
for any damage that may be caused to such facilities, within the highway rights of way limits, in carrying out its 
construction. 
 
 That the party of the second part agrees to restore all areas disturbed during construction to the satisfaction of 
the Division Engineer of the party of the first part.  The party of the second part agrees to exercise every reasonable 
precaution during construction and maintenance to prevent eroding of soil; silting or pollution of rivers, streams, 
lakes, reservoirs, other water impoundments, ground surfaces or other property; or pollution of the air.  There shall 
be compliance with applicable rules and regulations of the North Carolina Division of Environmental Management, 
North Carolina Sedimentation Control Commission, and with ordinances and regulations of various counties, 
municipalities and other official agencies relating to pollution prevention and control.  When any construction 
operation disturbs the ground surface and existing ground cover, the party of the second part agrees to remove and 
replace the sod or otherwise reestablish the grass cover to meet the satisfaction of the Division Engineer of the party 
of the first part. 
 
 That the party of the second part agrees to assume the actual cost of any inspection of the work considered to be 
necessary by the Division Engineer of the party of the first part. 
 
 That the party of the second part agrees to have available at the encroaching site, at all times during construction, 
a copy of this agreement showing evidence of approval by the party of the first part.  The party of the first part 
reserves the right to stop all work unless evidence of approval can be shown. 
 
 Provided the work contained in this agreement is being performed on a completed highway open to traffic; the 
party of the second part agrees to give written notice to the Division Engineer of the party of the first part when all 
work contained herein has been completed.  Unless specifically requested by the party of the first part, written notice 
of completion of work on highway projects under construction will not be required. 
 
 That in the case of noncompliance with the terms of this agreement by the party of the second part, the party of 
the first part reserves the right to stop all work until the facility has been brought into compliance or removed from the 
right of way at no cost to the party of the first part. 
 
 That it is agreed by both parties that this agreement shall become void if actual construction of the work 
contemplated herein is not begun within one (1) year from the date of authorization by the party of the first part 

060512 BCC Meeting

87



Page 2 

unless written waiver is secured by the party of the second part from the party of the first part. 
R/W (161B) : Party of the Second Part certifies that this agreement is true and accurate copy of the form 
R/W (161B) incorporating all revisions to date. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties to this agreement has caused the same to be executed the day and 
year first above written. 
 
  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

  BY:       
   District Engineer 

ATTEST OR WITNESS:   

             

             
  Second Party 
 
 

INSTRUCTIONS 
 

When the applicant is a corporation or a municipality, this agreement must have the corporate seal and 
be attested by the corporation secretary or by the empowered city official, unless a waiver of corporate 
seal and attestation by the secretary or by the empowered City official is on file in the Raleigh office of 
the Manager of Right of Way.  In the space provided in this agreement for execution, the name of the 
corporation or municipality shall be typed above the name, and title of all persons signing the agreement 
should be typed directly below their signature. 
 
When the applicant is not a corporation, then his signature must be witnessed by one person.  The 
address should be included in this agreement and the names of all persons signing the agreement 
should be typed directly below their signature. 
 
This agreement must be accompanied, in the form of an attachment, by plans or drawings showing the 
following applicable information: 
 
1. All roadways and ramps. 
2. Right of way lines and where applicable, the control of access lines. 
3. Location of the proposed encroachment. 
4. Length and type of encroachment. 
5. Location by highway survey station number.  If station number cannot be obtained, location 

should be shown by distance from some identifiable point, such as a bridge, road, 
intersection, etc.  (To assist in preparation of the encroachment plan, the Department’s 
roadway plans may be seen at the various Highway Division Offices, or at the Raleigh 
office.) 

6. Drainage structures or bridges if affected by encroachment. 
7. Typical section indicating the pavement design and width, and the slopes, widths and 

details for either a curb and gutter or a shoulder and ditch section, whichever is applicable. 
8. Horizontal alignment indicating general curve data, where applicable. 
9. Vertical alignment indicated by percent grade, P.I. station and vertical curve length, where 

applicable. 
10. Amount of material to be removed and/or placed on NCDOT right of way, if applicable. 
11. Cross-sections of all grading operations, indicating slope ratio and reference by station 

where applicable. 
12. All pertinent drainage structures proposed.  Include all hydraulic data, pipe sizes, structure 

details and other related information. 
13. Erosion and sediment control. 
14. Any special provisions or specifications as to the performance of the work or the method of 

construction that may be required by the Department must be shown on a separate sheet 
attached to encroachment agreement provided that such information cannot be shown on 
plans or drawings. 

15. The Department’s Division Engineer should be given notice by the applicant prior to actual 
starting of installation included in this agreement. 

16. Method of handling traffic during construction where applicable. 
17. Scale of plans, north arrow, etc. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

88



R4.3'

18' 9'
5'

9'

9'

6'

9'

10'

20'

R26'

17.7'

R55.7'

31.0'

29
05

 9
th

 S
t. 

P
l. 

N
E

H
ic

ko
ry

, N
C

 2
86

01
P

: (
82

8)
 3

20
-7

25
2

F:
 (8

28
) 3

94
-4

12
6

C
iv

il
U

til
iti

es
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t

BEFORE YOU DIG

Contact N.C. One-Call Center

(800) 632-4949 or 811

060512 B
C

C
 M

eeting89



29
05

 9
th

 S
t. 

P
l. 

N
E

H
ic

ko
ry

, N
C

 2
86

01
P

: (
82

8)
 3

20
-7

25
2

F:
 (8

28
) 3

94
-4

12
6

C
iv

il
U

til
iti

es
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t

060512 B
C

C
 M

eeting90



29
05

 9
th

 S
t. 

P
l. 

N
E

H
ic

ko
ry

, N
C

 2
86

01
P

: (
82

8)
 3

20
-7

25
2

F:
 (8

28
) 3

94
-4

12
6

C
iv

il
U

til
iti

es
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t

060512 B
C

C
 M

eeting91



Blank Page 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

92



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

RURAL OPERATING ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (ROAP) HEARING REQUEST - 
APPALCART 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Mr. Chris Turner will request a public hearing be scheduled on June 19, 2012, to allow citizen 
comment on the Rural Operating Assistance Program (ROAP) grant application for FY 2013. 
 
Staff requests direction from the Board. 
 
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

93



060512 BCC Meeting

94



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

GRANT ACCEPTANCE FOR FORKLIFT PURCHASE 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Ms. Lisa Doty will request the Board accept a grant in the amount of $14,200 from NCDENR for 
a forklift for recycling operations.  The new forklift will replace the existing 20-year-old one.  
The grant will be effective with the proposed Fiscal Year 2013 budget, in which adequate funds 
have been appropriated for the purchase of the forklift.  Bids will be solicited and presented at a 
future meeting for Board approval. 
 
Staff requests direction from the Board. 
 
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

95



1 

 Watauga County 
Recycling 

Memo 
To: Deron Geouque 

From: Lisa Doty  

CC: Margaret Pierce, JV Potter 

Date: May 29, 2012 

Re: NC DENR Forklift Grant 

Attached please find the grant contract from the North Carolina Department of Natural 
Resources and Environment for $14,200 to help purchase a new forklift for the Watauga 
County Sanitation Department, Recycling Operations.  They received an overwhelming 
response for grant requests and were able to offer half of the amount originally requested.  
We have already budgeted funds to cover the remaining cost of the forklift. 

I would like to ask the Commissioners if they wish to accept the grant.  Thank you. 

 

060512 BCC Meeting

96



060512 BCC Meeting

97



060512 BCC Meeting

98



060512 BCC Meeting

99



060512 BCC Meeting

100



060512 BCC Meeting

101



060512 BCC Meeting

102



060512 BCC Meeting

103



060512 BCC Meeting

104



060512 BCC Meeting

105



060512 BCC Meeting

106



060512 BCC Meeting

107



060512 BCC Meeting

108



060512 BCC Meeting

109



060512 BCC Meeting

110



060512 BCC Meeting

111



060512 BCC Meeting

112



060512 BCC Meeting

113



060512 BCC Meeting

114



060512 BCC Meeting

115



060512 BCC Meeting

116



060512 BCC Meeting

117



Blank Page 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

118



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

TAX MATTERS  

A. Monthly Collections Report 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Tax Administrator Kelvin Byrd will present the Monthly Collections Report and be available for 
questions and discussion. 
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 10: 

TAX MATTERS  

B. Refunds and Releases 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Byrd will present the Refunds and Releases Report.  Board action is required to accept the 
Refunds and Releases Report. 
 
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

119



Blank Page 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

120



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

FINANCE MATTERS 

A. Budget Amendments 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, will review budget amendments as included in your 
packet. 
 
Board approval is requested. 
 
 
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

121



 
 

                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 

814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607 - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
         
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:   Deron Geouque, County Manager 
FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
SUBJECT: Budget Amendments-FY 2011/12 
DATE:  May 22, 2012 
 
The following budget amendments require the approval of the Watauga County Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
283102-312111  Tax Revenue Todd Fire Dist    $3,500 
284340-469911  Payment to Todd Fire Dist  $3,500 
283102-312106  Tax Revenue Zionville Fire Dist   $4,500 
284340-469906  Payment to Zionville Fire Dist $4,500 
283102-312105  Tax Revenue St Simmons Fire Dist   $2,500 
284340-469905  Payment to St Simmons Fire Dist $2,500 
283102-312104  Tax Revenue Beaver Dam Fire Dist   $3,000 
284340-469904  Payment to Beaver Dam Fire Dist $3,000 
283102-312101  Tax Revenue Foscoe Fire Dist   $3,000 
284340-469901  Payment to Foscoe Fire Dist  $3,000 
243102-312101  Tax Revenue Foscoe Serv Dist   $1,400 
244340-469901  Payment to Foscoe Serv Dist  $1,400 
243102-312108  Tax Revenue Shawneehaw Serv Dist   $200 
244340-469908  Payment to Shawneehaw Serv Dist $200 
 
To recognize additional estimated fire tax district revenues and payments above budgeted 
amounts due to fire departments. 
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
293270-312009  Occupancy Tax Revenue    $92,500 
294140-449900  Administrative Fee   $1,100 
294140-469900  Payment to WCTDA   $91,400 
 
To recognize additional occupancy tax revenues estimates above budgeted amount and payment 
due to Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority for net occupancy tax and 
Watauga County for statutory administrative collection fees. 

060512 BCC Meeting

122



 
 

 
 
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
103200-326600  ABC/5 cents a Bottle     $800 
105210-469852  ABC/5 cents a Bottle   $800 
 
To recognize additional estimated revenues and expenditures for Alcohol Beverage Control 
funds. 
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
143585-323000  State and Federal Daycare Subsidies   $6,157 
145850-440900  Daycare Subsidies   $6,157 
143585-323002  Smart Start Daycare Subsidies   $55,426 
145850-440901  Smart Start Daycare Subsidies $55,426 
 
To recognize increases in DSS funding allocations for daycare subsidies from state and federal 
sources. These allocations are for direct services provided for clients. 
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
103300-349910  NC ADM Capital Funds    $102,750 
105911-470007  Parkway School Roof   $39,000 
105911-470008  Hardin Park School Roof  $63,750 
 
Per Board action 3-17-12 approving the application for NC ADM Capital funds; to recognize 
the award of the funds applied for by the Watauga County Board of Education. Local match 
will be provided by the Watauga County Board of Education. 
 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

123



Blank Page 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

124



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

FINANCE MATTERS 

B. Proposed Lease Amendment on High School Property 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
As part of the refinancing of the high school debt, an amendment was required to the current 
lease signed on April 1, 2008.  The change is a procedural one in which the Watauga County 
Board of Education lien position was shifted to follow the financing documents.  No other 
changes in terms or conditions were required to be made. 
 
Board action, contingent upon County Attorney review, is requested to approve the lease 
modification as presented. 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

125



                  W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 
   814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607  - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M     
 
 
 TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
 SUBJECT: Lease Amendment  
 DATE: March 22, 2012 
 
 
Attached please find an amendment for the April 1, 2008 lease on the Watauga High School 
property. Due to the refinance of the loans using this property as collateral, an amendment to the 
lease is required to move the Watauga County Board of Education lien position to follow the 
financing documents. No other change in terms is made in the amendment. 
 
Board approval is requested for the lease amendment. 
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

126



060512 BCC Meeting

127



060512 BCC Meeting

128



060512 BCC Meeting

129



060512 BCC Meeting

130



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Meat Camp VFD Request for Support of Lease Purchase Agreement 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
The Meat Camp Volunteer Fire Department requests a letter of support from the County to assist 
in obtaining financing to purchase equipment for their operation.  The letter would confirm that 
they receive both County and fire tax funding.  The letter of support does not obligate the 
County.   
 
Board approval is requested. 
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

131



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 5, 2012 
 
 
 
United Financial of North Carolina, Inc. 
58 Wilkie Way 
Fletcher, NC 28732 
 
Re: Lease Purchase Agreement between United Financial of North Carolina, Inc. and Meat 
Camp Volunteer Fire Department 
 
Dear Sirs, 
 
I am Chairman of the County Commissioners of Watauga County.  This letter is to advise you 
that: Meat Camp Volunteer Fire Department is a qualified Volunteer Fire Department, assigned 
to protect a specific Fire District within this County. 
 
In addition, a special ad valorem (fire tax) is assessed on the real property owners of this district.  
Said tax is to be used exclusively to provide equipment, facilities, and training as is necessary to 
provide fire protection for said district.  Said funds may also be used to upgrade equipment as the 
need arises.  This tax is collected by the County and disbursed by the Finance Office to the Fire 
Department on a regular basis by the County Finance Officer.  The Fire Department is operated 
and managed by the Board of Directors of the Fire Department and the Officers of said 
Department.  The Department is currently meeting the requirements of their fire service contract. 
 
The Fire Department has made us aware of their intention to acquire new capital assets through a 
Lease Purchase transaction with your firm.  Please be advised that the County has no objection to 
this transaction. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
Vince Gable, Vice-Chairman 
David Blust 
Jim Deal 
Tim Futrelle 

COUNTY MANAGER 
Deron T. Geouque 

 
COUNTY ATTORNEY 

Stacy C. Eggers, IV 
 
 

Administration Building, Suite 205 ● 814 West King Street ● Boone, North Carolina 28607 

Telephone 828-265-8000 
TDD 1-800-735-2962 
Voice 1-800-735-8262 

County of Watauga 
060512 BCC Meeting

132



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 25, 2012 
 
 
 
United Financial of North Carolina, Inc. 
58 Wilkie Way 
Fletcher, NC 28732 
 
Gentlemen: 
 
The funding for Meat Camp Volunteer Fire Department has been progressive as per the 
following schedule:   
 
Fiscal Year Actual or Anticipated Tax Revenue Assessed Valuation Rate Per $100 Value 
 
2012 $119,980.00 $399,933,300 $.03 
 
2011 $119,906.00 $399,686,600 $.03 
 
2010 $118,840.00 $396,133,300 $.03 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Deron T. Geouque 
County Manager 
Watauga County 
 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
Vince Gable, Vice-Chairman 
David Blust 
Jim Deal 
Tim Futrelle 

COUNTY MANAGER 
Deron T. Geouque 

 
COUNTY ATTORNEY 

Stacy C. Eggers, IV 
 
 

Administration Building, Suite 205 ● 814 West King Street ● Boone, North Carolina 28607 

Telephone 828-265-8000 
TDD 1-800-735-2962 
Voice 1-800-735-8262 

County of Watauga 
060512 BCC Meeting

133



060512 BCC Meeting

134



060512 BCC Meeting

135



Blank Page 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

136



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

B. Fiscal Year 2013 Budget Discussion 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
At the Board’s last budget work session, direction was given to staff to request additional 
information from the Health Department and Humane Society to assist the Board in making a 
decision regarding funding for Fiscal Year 2013.  Below is a list of changes requested by the 
Board which have already been made to the proposed budget. 
 
Revenues   
Cable TV Franchise Fees increase $10,000 
   

Expenditures   
Board of Elections increase travel and part time salaries  $8,790 
Board of Education increase current capital outlay $18,826 
Recreation, Special Populations increase supplies and travel $850 
Special Allocations 
 

decrease Children’s Playhouse 
decrease WeCAN 

$2,500 
$1,000 

Emergency Services decrease cell allowance $576 
Tax Administration decrease salaries $6,000 
General Administration 
 

decrease Professional Services-Architects   
decrease miscellaneous expenses 

$7,540 
$850 

 
The proposed budget is scheduled for adoption on June 19, 2012.  The Board may accept the 
proposed budget with no additional changes recommended, request changes at this meeting, or 
schedule another work session before the June 19th meeting. 
 
 
Staff requests direction from the Board. 
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

137



Blank Page 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

138



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

C. July Meeting Schedule Discussion 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Historically, the Board cancels the first meeting in July due to the adoption of the annual budget 
and the beginning of a new fiscal year.  The primary run-off is slated for July 17, 2012, requiring 
the use of the Commissioners’ Board Room as a polling place.   
 
Staff would recommend the Board cancel the July 4, 2012 meeting and reschedule the July 17, 
2012 meeting to July 24, 2012, at 5:30 PM.   
 
Board direction is requested.   
 
 
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

139



 

060512 B
C

C
 M

eeting

140



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

D. Boards and Commissions 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Region D Development Corporation is a Certified Development Company that assists the 
US Small Business Administration in delivering small business loans to the region.  They also 
assist in marketing and packaging loans for small businesses throughout the region.  Per their 
bylaws, each county is required to appoint four persons to serve as members of the Development 
Corporation in May of each year.  Representative categories are local government (1), private 
lending institution (1), and community organization or a business organization (2).  Following is 
a list of current appointees:  Mr. Fowler Cooper (Local Government); Mr. Brian Crutchfield 
(Community Organization); Mr. Jim Furman (Business Organization); and Mr. Brian Riggins 
(Private Lending Institution).  You may wish to reappoint those serving or appoint new 
members. 
 
The terms, on the Department of Social Services Board, of Chairman Miller and Ms. Mary 
Moretz are set to expire on June 30, 2012.  Both members are eligible and available for 
reappointment. 
 
The above are first readings and, therefore, no action is required at this time. 
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

141



060512 BCC Meeting

142



060512 B
C

C
 M

eeting

143



 

    
   Watauga County 

  Department of Social Services 
SOCIAL SERVICES BOARD 
David Turlington, Chair 
Mary Moretz , Vice Chair 
Nathan Miller 
Tom Trexler 
Audrey Tate 
 

132 POPLAR GROVE CONNECTOR – SUITE C  
BOONE, NORTH CAROLINA 28607 

Telephone 828-265-8100 
TDD 1-800-735-2962 
Voice 1-800-735-8262  

Fax 828-265-7638 

JIM ATKINSON, MSW 
Director 

  
 

  
  
Memo: 
 
Deron, 
The current terms of Nathan Miller and Mary Moretz on the DSS Board will end on June 30, 2012, 
each having been previously appointed by the Watauga County Board of Commissioners.   
 
Each is eligible for re-appointment, and they have agreed to serve another term if appointed. 
 
Please place this on the agenda for the next BOCC meeting. 
 
Thanks,  
 
Jim Atkinson, Director 

060512 BCC Meeting

144



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

E.  Announcements 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
A public hearing will be held Tuesday, June 19, 2012, at 6:00 P.M. to allow citizen comment on 
proposed fire district boundary changes involving Stewart Simmons, Deep Gap, and Boone 
districts.   
 
 
  

060512 BCC Meeting

145



AGENDA ITEM 13: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Time has been reserved to allow citizen comment to address the Board for any area of interest or 
concern. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 14: 

BREAK 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 15: 

CLOSED SESSION 

 
Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 
 

060512 BCC Meeting

146


	Agenda
	Approval of the Minutes
	Approval of the June 5, 2012, Agenda
	Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on the Proposed Demolition of the Old High School
	Appalachian District Health Department Update
	Juvenile Crime Prevention Program (JCPP) Certification and Membership for FY 2013
	Tourism Development Authority’s (TDA) Proposed Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Encroachment on Pine Run Road
	Rural Operating Assistance Program (ROAP) Hearing Request - AppalCART
	Grant Acceptance for Forklift Purchase
	Tax Matters
	A.  Monthly Collections Report
	B.  Refunds and Releases
	Finance Matters
	A.  Budget Amendments
	B.  Proposed Lease Amendment on High School Property
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Meat Camp VFD Request for Support of Lease Purchase Agreement
	B.  FY 2013 Budget Discussion
	C. July Meeting Schedule Discussion
	D.  Boards and Commissions
	E.  Announcements
	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session



